## **Decisions of the Cabinet**

5 September 2023

Members Present:-

Councillor Barry Rawlings (Chair)
Councillor Ross Houston (Vice-Chair)

Councillor Barry Rawlings Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member – Resources

(Chair) and Effective Council

Councillor Ross Houston Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member – Homes

(Vice-Chair) and Regeneration

Councillor Paul Edwards Cabinet Member – Adult Social Care

Councillor Ammar Naqvi Cabinet Member – Culture, Leisure, Arts and Sports Councillor Anne Clarke Cabinet Member – Community Wealth Building

Councillor Sara Conway Cabinet Member – Community Safety and Participation

Councillor Pauline Coakley Webb Cabinet Member – Family Friendly Barnet Councillor Alison Moore Cabinet Member – Health and Wellbeing

Councillor Alan Schneiderman Cabinet Member – Environment and Climate Change

Apologies for absence:

Councillor Zahra Beg, Cabinet Member – Equalities, Voluntary and Community Sector

Also in attendance:

Councillor Arjun Mittra
Councillor Daniel Thomas
Councillor Peter Zinkin

Councillor Barry Rawlings, Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Resources and Effective Council welcomed all attendees to the meeting.

### 1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 18 July 2023 be approved as a correct record.

### 2. ABSENCE OF MEMBERS

An apology for absence had been received from the Cabinet Member – Equalities and the Voluntary and Community Sector, Councillor Zahra Beg.

### 3. DECLARATION OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS (IF ANY)

None.

#### 4. QUESTIONS FROM NON-EXECUTIVE MEMBERS

The Chair welcomed Councillors Daniel Thomas, Peter Zinkin and Arjun Mittra to the meeting who were in attendance to ask questions on agenda items in accordance with Executive Procedure Rule 13.6. Questions were raised in relation to agenda items 10, 11 and 14 which were responded to verbally at the meeting by Cabinet Members.

# 5. PETITIONS (IF ANY)

None.

#### 6. DEPUTATIONS

A deputation had been received from the Grahame Park – The Strand Resident Association on Agenda Item 10 (Our Plan for Barnet delivery and Outcomes framework Q1 2023 -2024) details of which had been circulated to Cabinet.

Representatives from the Deputation did not attend Cabinet.

The Leader advised that Cabinet would need to decide whether to:

- 1. Note the deputation and take no action.
- 2. Note the deputation in consideration of the report.
- 3. Ask officers to prepare a report for the next meeting (of either this committee or another relevant committee) on the deputation.
- 4. Ask officers to provide a written response to the deputation.

The Leader and the Cabinet Member for Housing and Regeneration responded verbally to the Deputation at the meeting.

Following discussion, Cabinet

RESOLVED that officers be requested to provide a written response to the Deputation.

### 7. PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS (IF ANY)

None.

### 8. MATTERS REFERRED TO THE EXECUTIVE (IF ANY)

None.

# 9. CONSIDERATION OF REPORTS FROM THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE OR SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEES (IF ANY)

None.

### 10. URGENT ITEM - SCHOOL BUILDING SAFETY STATEMENT

At the invitation of the Leader, the Cabinet Member for Family Friendly Barnet read the following statement to Cabinet:

"As you will be aware the Secretary of State for Education significantly escalated the risks associated with the safety of school buildings, last week, because of the use of Reinforced Autoclaved Aerated Concrete (RAAC) in public buildings, following failures of this in some schools in England.

Barnet Council has been proactive in addressing these concerns for the schools we have responsibility for (i.e. community schools and foundation schools). There are 51 Community Schools/Foundation Schools in the Borough. Following a desktop analysis and questionnaires, initial survey checks have already been conducted across these institutions yesterday and today. We are pleased to report that in general community/foundation schools in Barnet are not affected by RAAC-related issues. We do need to do some further intrusive survey work in five schools and they are not able to use all of their facilities. No schools have needed to close or educate their pupils at home, although one did delay the start of term by one day.

In addition, there are 79 Academies and Voluntary Aided Schools in Barnet and the school buildings for these schools are not the responsibility of the Council. We did not have access to their DfE Questionnaire responses so were unable to ascertain which schools fully complied with the requirements. The Diocesan Boards and Trusts, responsible for these school buildings dealt directly with the DfE.

We have contacted the Responsible Bodies for all our non-Community Schools requesting that they confirm to us that they have completed the DfE survey/questionnaire and that no further surveys were requested by the DfE. Responses so far have confirmed that no RAAC has been identified, apart from the academy indicated previously. We will follow up with any school where the DfE survey/questionnaire has not taken place.

We have been made aware that one academy, who had a survey conducted directly by the DfE, has got the RAAC material in one of its buildings. We have been notified that this area has been made safe.

The safety of our children and the structural integrity of our schools remains our top priorities. Barnet Council is committed to cooperating fully with the government's inquiry and taking all necessary actions to maintain the highest safety standards in our educational establishments."

# 11. OUR PLAN FOR BARNET - DELIVERY AND OUTCOMES FRAMEWORK, Q1 2023-24

Councillor Barry Rawlings Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Resources & Effective Council introduced the report.

During discussion officers were requested to:

- Provide a response on the "technical reason" for the decrease in "% of customers who are satisfied with the service on the web"; and
- Ensure that Our Plan for Barnet indicators included all of the new Office for Local Government indicators.

Following discussion, the Chair moved to vote on the recommendations.

#### **DECISION:**

RESOLVED that Cabinet note the contents of Our Plan for Barnet – Delivery and Outcomes Framework, Q1 2023-24 Report.

The report set out the options considered, if any, and the reasons for the recommendations and the decision.

# 12. CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER REPORT - 2023/24 QUARTER 1 FINANCIAL FORECAST AND 2023/24 BUDGET MANAGEMENT

Councillor Barry Rawlings Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Resources & Effective Council introduced the report.

Following discussion, the Chair moved to vote on the recommendations.

### **DECISION:**

### **RESOLVED that Cabinet:**

- 1. Note the forecast outturn for 2023/24 against the Council's revenue budget.
- 2. Note the current use of reserves, and the outlook.
- 3. Note the expenditure against capital budgets in the year.
- 4. Note the current debt position and related actions.
- 5. Approve the changes to the existing Capital Programme in relation to additions and slippage as set out in section 5.1 5.12 in accordance with the virement rules.
- 6. Agree the CIL funding for Road Safety & Parking be increased from £0.450m per annum to £1.2m per annum for schemes to be authorised by the Director, Highways & Transportation
- 7. Approve the Fees and Charges as set out in section 6 and attached at Appendix B for recommendation of the council side fees and charges to Full Council for consideration with any consultation responses and equality impact assessments (EqIA), and to delegate the approval of the executive side fees and charges to the Portfolio Holder for Resources & Effective Council once they have been subject to consultation and EqIA.
- 8. Approve the writes-offs for Tenant Arrears and Sundry Debt as detailed in sections 7.17 7.26 and in Appendix C.

The report set out the options considered, if any, and the reasons for the recommendations and the decision.

### 13. LGA CORPORATE PEER CHALLENGE - REPORT AND ACTION PLAN

Councillor Barry Rawlings, Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Resources & Effective Council introduced the report.

Following discussion, the Chair moved to vote on the recommendations.

### **DECISION:**

### **RESOLVED that the Cabinet:**

- 1. Agree the contents of the report and accepts the recommendations of the LGA Peer Review team (as set out in Appendix A).
- 2. Agree the contents of the Action Plan prepared in response to those recommendations (Appendix B) and that implementation of the actions is delegated to the Chief Executive, who will report progress to Cabinet or appropriate committee.
- 3. Agree to publish the LGA Peer Review report and the Action Plan on the Barnet website.
- 4. Note that there will be a follow-up visit from members of the Peer Team to review progress against the Action Plan, date to be confirmed but likely to be spring 2024.

The report set out the options considered, if any, and the reasons for the recommendations and the decision.

# 14. BARNET'S LOCAL FLOOD RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY (LFRMS) AND ACTION PLAN (2023-29)

Councillor Alan Schneiderman, Cabinet Member for Environment and Climate Change introduced the report.

Following discussion, the Chair moved to vote on the recommendations.

### **DECISION:**

### **RESOLVED that Cabinet:**

- 1. Approve the proposed Local Flood Risk Management Strategy (LFRMS) 2023-29.
- 2. Adopt the associated Action Plan 2023-29 to achieve the four key strategic objectives as set out by the LFRMS 2023-29 and under section 1.2.

The report set out the options considered, if any, and the reasons for the recommendations and the decision.

### 15. REDUCTION & RECYCLING PLAN

Councillor Alan Schneiderman, Cabinet Member for Environment and Climate Change introduced the report.

Following discussion, the Chair moved to vote on the recommendations.

#### **DECISION:**

### **RESOLVED that Cabinet:**

- 1. Approve the Council's Reduction & Recycling Plan (RRP) for submission to the Greater London Authority (GLA).
- 2. Delegate authority to the Street Scene Director in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Environment & Climate Change to implement the actions detailed within the RRP once the plan is formally approved by the GLA.
- 3. Delegate authority to the Street Scene Director in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Environment & Climate Change to provide any updates to the GLA as required in relation to the RRP.

The report set out the options considered, if any, and the reasons for the recommendations and the decision.

# 16. TEMPORARY AND INTERIM WORKFORCE (INCLUDING PERMANENT RECRUITMENT SERVICES) TWO YEAR CONTRACT EXTENSION WITH MATRIX SCM

Councillor Barry Rawlings, Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Resources & Effective Council.

Following discussion, the Chair moved to vote on the recommendations.

### **DECISION:**

RESOLVED that Cabinet authorise the extension of the Temporary and Interim Workforce (including Permanent Recruitment Service) contract with Matrix SCM Limited for 2 years from 1<sup>st</sup> October 2023 until 30<sup>th</sup> September 2025.

The report set out the options considered, if any, and the reasons for the recommendations and the decision.

# 17. FORENSIC TESTING ASSESSMENT SERVICES - CONTRACT EXTENSION AND APPROVAL TO PROCURE

Councillor Barry Rawlings, Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Resources and Effective Council introduced the report.

Cabinet noted the information detailed in the associated exempt report in making the decision.

Following discussion, the Chair moved to vote on the recommendations.

#### **DECISION:**

# **RESOLVED** that the Cabinet:

- 1. Note a 12-month extension to the contract with Lextox T/A E4 Law Limited with new agreed pricing (Appendix 1) from 05/06/2023 to 04/06/2024 to allow time to complete the tender process.
- 2. Note that there was an overspend of £113,790 in the contract with Lextox Ltd between 05/06/2021 to 04/06/2023 due to demand for higher volumes. The contract is a volume-based contract.
- 3. Note that a Waiver should have been granted for 12-months pursuant to the Contract Procedure Rules to enable continuity of service and enable a new procurement exercise.
- 4. Authorise to increase from the agreed contract value of £100,000 on the Annual Procurement Forward Plan to £150,000 per annum over a 2 year plus up to 2-year extension period to a forecast total contract value £600,000.

The report set out the options considered, if any, and the reasons for the recommendations and the decision.

# 18. APPROVAL OF THE AWARD OF PROVISION OF LEASEHOLD & MAIN INSURANCE CONTRACTS EFFECTIVE FROM 1 OCTOBER 2023

Councillor Barry Rawlings, Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Resources and Effective Council introduced the report.

Cabinet noted that an addendum had been circulated which:

- 1. Proposed an amendment to recommendation 2;
- 2. Provided the exempt appendix (Insurance Tender Report AJ Gallagher Insurance Brokers) marked as 'to follow' in the agenda; and
- 3. Replaced text in section 5 of the report relating to Resource Implications.

Cabinet noted the information detailed in the associated exempt report in making the decision.

Following discussion, the Chair moved to vote on the recommendations.

### **DECISION:**

### **RESOLVED that the Cabinet:**

- 1. Award the Main Insurance contracts to commence on the 1 October 2023 for a period of three years, with the option to extend for a further period of up to two years.
- 2. Award of the Leasehold Insurance contract to commence on the 1 October 2023 for a period of three years, with the option to extend for a further period of up to two years.
- 3. Delegate authority to the Director of Finance (S151 Officer) to have regard to the S20 notice and to make any emergency arrangements for insurance cover

beyond 1 October 2023 in the event contracts are not able to be finalised in line with these proposals by 1 October 2023.

4. Delegate authority to the Director of Finance (S151 Officer) to determine funding for any extra budgetary requirements caused by the awarding the new contracts commencing 1 October 2023.

The report set out the options considered, if any, and the reasons for the recommendations and the decision.

# 19. CABINET FORWARD PLAN - KEY DECISION SCHEDULE

Cabinet noted the Forward Plan – Key Decision Schedule.

The meeting finished at 8.33pm.

# **Proper Officer**

This document outlines the decisions taken at the above Cabinet meeting. Unless otherwise indicated, executive decisions listed in this document will come into force and may then be implemented 5 clear working days after publication of this document unless the decision is called in

Five Members of the Council can call in a decision of the Cabinet, which has been taken but not implemented. For matters impacting a particular ward, a ward Councillor must be included in the 5 signatures. Call-in must be by notification to the Monitoring Officer or Head of Governance in writing signed by all five Members (<a href="Part 3C - Committee">Part 3C - Committee</a>
<a href="Procedure Rules of the Council's Constitution">Procedure Rules of the Council's Constitution</a>).

Date of Publication:	7 <sup>th</sup> September 2023
Last Date for Call-In:	(Please note that Call-in may not apply to all
	decisions).
Date decision can be implemented	14 <sup>th</sup> September 2023, 5pm
if not called in:	
Contact:	Head of Governance:
	Andrew.Charlwood@barnet.gov.uk